# HOCKEY MADHYA PRADESH

10CKEY MADHYA PRADESH प्रतिष्ट्रेशन नष्टा । १८ प्रतिष्ट्रेशन ना श्रिकान २०/०५/६। महागान का हिनाक 11 00 2019

#### PREAMBLE

These rules supersede and cancel all previous issues of the rules printed or otherwise.

In these rules 'Association' refers to the 'Hockey Madhya Pradesh'. District Association means District Association affiliated to Hockey Madhya Pradesh, 'Body' stands for Universities and Units affiliated to Hockey Madhya Pradesh. This constitution will come into force as soon as it is passed by the General Council.

# CONSTITUTION

The Association will be composed of Primary member who in general or (1) emergent meeting shall be called General Council and an Executive Committee elected by the General Council.

#### NAME

The Association shall be called the "Hockey Madhya Pradesh".

# **HEAD QUARTERS**

ie Head Quarters of the Hockey Madhya Pradesh shall be at Jabalpur where the ecutive Committee and the General Council meetings shall be held generally.

#### **JURISDICTION**

The Jurisdiction of the Hockey Madhya Pradesh shall be over all the (4)Districts/Units of Madhya Pradesh.

## **OBJECTS**

- (5) The objects of the Hockey Madhya Pradesh shall be :-
  - To promote, encourage and control the game of Hockey in its jurisdiction. i)
  - To organize, encourage or control all Tournaments and Exhibition matches ii) in its jurisdiction.
  - To authorize the formation of District Association to control the game of iii) Hockey in their territories.
  - To collect funds for the purpose of the Association and employ the same in iv) such manner as may be considered desirable for the objects of the Association.
  - v) To select teams to represent Madhya Pradesh and to promote control and finance visits by such teams in India.
  - Generally to do all other things and acts as may seem to the Association to vi) be conductive to the carrying out of the objects of the Association.

President / General Secretary / Treasurer

President / General Secretary / Treasurer

PATRON IN CHIEF

The Governor of Madhya Pradesh shall be the patron in Chief of the "Hockey (6) Madhya Pradesh."

MEMBERSHIP

The primary membership of the Hockey Madhya Prades Film 20 12019 (7)्री अग्निस्टेन्ट रजिस्ट्रार following :-

a) Universities, Bodies and District Associations

b) Patrons: Any person who donates a sum of Rs. 2500 (Rupees Fixet Windows) or more, in cash or kind to the Hockey Madhya Pradesh be elected as Patron.

Life Member: Any person who donates a sum of Rs.250 (Rupees Tixtofifty) in cash or kind be accepted as a life members.

Alphorary Members: The General Council shall have power to co-opt unanimously any distinguished Hockey player or any person who has rendered mer orious service to the cause of Hockey as an Honorary member of the key Madhya Pradesh. Such members will not be entitled to vote at any eeting of the Association.

#### RIGHT OF VOTE

(8)District Associations

#### A. DISTRICT ASSOCIATION:

A District Association seeking affiliation to the Association shall have to affiliate at least 5 clubs and register at least 80 players with the association. The District Association shall then have representation with right of vote in the General Council of the Association as follows:

- i) District Association 1 to 5 Clubs One representative
- ii) District Association 6 & Above Two Representative

Note: If there are less than Five clubs in a District they shall be directly affiliated with the Association on paying an annual subscription of Rs. 500/- plus an affiliation (entrance) fee Rs.100/- such clubs however, shall have no right to vote in the Association but shall be entitled to send one representative.

B. BODIES: Bodies can send their representative in meetings but shall not be entitled to vote as member of the Association

C. PATRONS & LIFE MEMBERS: Patrons and Life members shall not be entitled to vote as member of the Association.

NOTE - No member shall have the right to vote at any meeting of the Association or the Committee or Sub-committee thereof unless the subscription for the year and other dues, if any, have been paid.

HOCKEY MADHYA

President / General Secretary / Treasurer

President / General Speciatory / Treasurer

### AFFILIATION

(9)All District Association, Universities and Bodies before being affiliated to the Association must satisfy the Executive Committee, that they are properly constituted sports Associations, playing Hockey. Every application for affiliation must be accompanied by a return in accordance with Form 'A' hereto annexed, and with the acceptance of the application by the Executive Committee any member of the Affiliated District Association, Universities and Bodies shall for the purpose of these rules be deemed to be affiliated to the Association and shall be bound by the rules.

Affiliation shall be for a period of one year only from 1st July to 30th June of the succeeding year. Accounts will be maintained form 1st April to 31st March of the next year.

The District Associations shall be entitled to affiliate teams and clubs to i) themselves, within their territorial jurisdiction and also to fix the affiliation fee. They would also authorize District Tournaments only within their jurisdiction and these tournaments shall be known as closed tournaments to be competed for by the teams of that District only, and an intimation of such closed tournaments to be held with draft rules shall be submitted in advance, to the Association for approval.

to affiliated body shall itself promote or take part in or permit any club or player within its jurisdiction to promote or to take part in any:-

Open Tournament which is not sanctioned by the Hockey Madhya Pradesh or Hockey India or closed Tournament which is not sanctioned by the District Association concerned.

- b) At which anything but prizes, certificates, medals or miniature cups of nominal values are awarded to the teams.
- c) At which any payment other than that which is specified by the Hockey India/ Hockey Madhya Pradesh is made for participation in it.

Infringement of this shall be dealt with by the Executive Committee of the Association.

Affiliated Organizations shall submit recommendations to the Hockey iii) Madhya Pradesh of cases of penalty, disqualifications or ban to be imposed on players, teams or clubs or tournament not in their jurisdiction for disposal by the Executive Committee of the Association, such decisions should be circulated by the General Secretary of the Hockey Madhya Pradesh to other affiliated organizations and enforce them in their jurisdiction and shall be in operation unless the penalty is withdrawn by HOCKEY MADHYA PRADESHockey Madhya Pradesh.

HOCKEYWADHYA PRADESH

President / General Secretary / Treasurer

President / General Scoretary / Treasure

- All disciplinary actions taken by the affiliated organizations against iv) players, teams or clubs or tournaments in their jurisdiction shall be notified to the General Secretary of the Hockey Madhya Pradesh for record. Appeals against such action by affiliated organizations shall lie with the Executive Committee of the Hockey Madhya Pradesh.
- Individuals, players or clubs shall not play against the unaffiliated clubs or V) unregistered players.
  - Affiliated Organizations or Bodies shall not affiliate clubs or teams from outside their jurisdiction without prior permission of the Hockey Madhya Pradesh.

General Secretary of every affiliated Body shall send his name and adress and also the name and address of their representatives on the sociation in (Form B) annexed to the General Secretary of the Hockey adhya Pradesh not later than 1st June every year.

# **SUBSCRIPTION**

District Associations, Universities, Bodies pay the fees as follows: (10)

1 Diet II 1		Affiliation	Annual Sub.
1. Dist. Hockey Association	-	1000/-	500/-
2. Bodies / Unit –		500/-	500/-
3. New affiliation		5000/-	1000/-

Note -The Annual Subscription for District Hockey Associations is fixed on the basis of there being three clubs affiliated to it. For every additional club affiliated to it the subscription shall increases at the rate of Rs. 500/- per club.

# **TOURNAMENT**

(11) All Bodies/District Associations which are allowed by the Hockey Madhya Pradesh to run open tournaments shall pay fees as follows to the Hockey Madhya Pradesh.

1. Provisional Tournament

15000/-2. All India Tournaments 10000/-

3. Closed Tournaments No Fees

4. Any other Tournaments Levy to be fixed by the Executive Committee

A. All Affiliated bodies and District Associations shall apply with fees at least two months in advance for permission to run a tournament, to the Hockey Madhya Pradesh with draft rules for such tournament. All entries for such tournament shall be limited only to the clubs and affiliated bodies of the Hockey Madhya Pradesh and

HOCKEY MADHMAIR ADES HIS the Hockey India.

HOCKEY MADHYA PRADESH

resident / General Secretary / Treasurer

रजिस्ट्रेशन नम्बर . 1.6 ... रजिस्ट्रेशन का दिनांक 2015 1.61 संशोधन का दिनांक 1.11 0.9 [2019

- B. The Annual Subscription shall be payable by 15 July of each year. The Executive Committee may disaffiliate such bodies/District Associations as are in arrears for more than two months and re-admit them if the reasons for delay in payment are satisfactory, on payment of a penalty Rs. 500/-.
- C. All affiliated bodies and all their members, officials and players shall be bound by the rules any Bye-Laws of the Association and all resolutions and decisions of the Executive Committee of the Association shall be binding.

# REGISTRATION OF PLAYERS

- (12) A. Every playing member shall be registered, through the affiliated body, on payment of a annual fee of Rs.100/- on or before the 30<sup>th</sup> October every year.
  - B. No individual person shall be registered as a playing member of more than one club in the same season and is expected to play for that club only throughout the season, except with the express previous permission of the Executive Committee of the Hockey Madhya Pradesh.

C. A player may be permitted to have only one transfer during the season. It ansfers within the jurisdiction of an affiliated body be dealt with by that body, out transfer outside the jurisdiction of the affiliated body will be sanctioned by the task utive Committee of the Hockey Madhya Pradesh.

I he event of the ceding club, refusing to give necessary consent for transfer, the affiliated body under special circumstances shall have the power to sanction same.

# **ELIGIBILITY OF PLAYERS**

(13) Only such players shall play for the College, School, District Associations, affiliated Bodies/Units as are on the rolls of the Body or department concerned and have resided in the jurisdiction of Hockey Madhya Pradesh for at least six months before the tournament immediately prior to the commencement of the season.

#### PENALTY FOR OFFENDERS

(14) In the event of any affiliated body/District Association, player or official being proved to the satisfaction of the Executive Committee to have been guilty of any violation or non-observance of the byelaws of the game or of the rules governing the various competitions organized by the affiliated body or of any misconduct whether in relation to sports or otherwise, the Executive Committee shall have power to cancel forthwith the affiliation or to suspend for a stated period affiliated individual players or official or otherwise to deal with it or him in such manner as the Executive Committee may be deem fit. Before any action is taken under this rule the individual or the offending body shall be given an opportunity to state

HOCKEY MADHYA PRABESHINGCKEY MADITYA PRADESH

Prosident / General Secretary / Treasurer

#### GENERAL COUNCIL

- (15) The General Council shall be the Supreme Authority of the Hockey Madhyartic Pradesh.
- (16) At all general meetings of the Hockey Madhya Pradesh the President or in his absence one of the Vice-presidents shall be in the Chair. In the absence of all the Vice- Presidents the Council shall elect its own Chairman before proceeding to business.
- (17) The General Council shall meet at least once in each year in the month of August or September, the exact date to be fixed by the Executive Committee. The business of the meeting shall include the following:
  - a) Adoption of the Annual report of the General Secretary every year.
  - b) Acceptance of accounts duly audited and acceptance of the Budget for the next year as presented by the Hony. Treasurer every year.
  - c) Election of the office bearers and members of the Executive Committee every four years.
  - Your years.

    Any other point/s with the permission of the Chair.

The eneral Secretary shall give at least fourteen days clear notice of the meeting of Affiliated Units, Patrons, Life Members and at least seven days notice of a special and adjourned general meeting alongwith the Agenda of the meeting. The time and place of such meetings will be fixed by the General Secretary in onsultation with the President.

- (18) Extra- ordinary or Emergent meetings of the General Council may be called at any time by the Executive Committee by itself or upon receiving a requisition from one fourth members of the General Council. For such meetings ten days notice is necessary.
- Quorum of a General Meeting shall be 2/3663 rgc.. members whichever is less, out of the members on the list up to date and entitled to vote provided that business transacted in an adjourned meeting due notice of which has been given to all members shall be deemed legal if less members are present.
- (20) A meeting of the General Council convened on a requisition from members will only discuss the specific agenda notified by the requisitionists. If a requisition meeting adjourns for want of quorums the agenda shall lapse.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

(21) The Hockey Madhya Pradesh shall be administered by an Executive Committee, which shall consist of the following –

HOCKEY MADHYA PRADESH (2) Vice-President-7 (3) General Secretary-1, (4) Secretaries-3, (5) Hony. Treasurer-1, (6) Members-10. Total 23

President / General Secretary / Treasurer

Precises ! / forecast activity / Treasurer

Din

रिजाद्रभाग राजा 18 विलाहेशन मा हिनान 2.01.05161 मजायन का दिनाक 11/09/2019

(a) Quorum: The quorum of the Executive Committee meeting shall be 1/2

(b) Meetings:

- 1. 10 days notice shall be necessary for an ordinary meeting for the Executive time. Committee.
- 2. 3 days notice shall be necessary for an emergent meeting of the Executive Committee.
- 3. In the event of the General Secretary not being able to convene a meeting of the Executive Committee, he is empowered to obtain the views of the members of the Executive Committee by Circulation.

Note - No quorum shall be necessary for an adjourned meeting of the Executive Committee.

- The Office bearers and the members of the Executive Committee must be from (22)the members of the General Council. These posts shall be honorary and they shall be elected every four years at the meeting of the General Council of the Hockey Madhya Pradesh. The president and Vice-Presidents may be from outside.
- (23)The Executive Committee will have the following powers:-

1. To hold meeting for the disposals of business.

2. To appoint Sub-committees for Referees examination or settlement of disputed points requiring special attention of any such managements.

3. To accept Trophies on behalf of the Hockey Madhya Pradesh. points requiring special attention or any such matter at its discretion.

4. To frame or correct existing rules for conducting Tournaments.

- 5. To holds control and administer the property and funds of the Association.
- of the affiliate District Associations, Bodies and Universities to the Association.
- If no prepare and issue to all affiliated Units the probable dates of all open cournament in the state, before the commencement of the Hockey Season.

To deal with all case of misconduct and impose suitable penalties.

To deal with such matters as have been referred to it, generally or specifically by the General Council.

There shall be no classifications of the Referees registered by the Association and the existing classification shall if so facts cease.

- (24)To appoint an auditor or auditors for auditing the accounts of Hockey Madhya Pradesh, before the General Council Meeting.
- To cancel any affiliation provided that before action is taken the attention of the (25)organization concerned is drawn to it and sufficient time given to the organization for representation and provided that the motion for cancellation of affiliation is supported by three fourth of the members present at the meeting.
- (26)To give decision and rulings on any point or points not covered by these rules.

#### POWERS AND THE DUTIES OF OFFICE BEARERS

President: The President shall be elected form among the members of the council (27)or from outsides within the jurisdiction of the Association. He shall convene and preside over all meetings of the Council and of any Committee of which heris a

HOCKEY MAZ

President / General Tech

President / General Socretary / Treasurer

member. In case of equality of votes he shall have a casting vote, in addition he shall have one more vote if he happens to be a representative of an affiliated units. If in the opinion of the President any emergency has arisen which requires immediate action to be taken he shall take such action as he deems necessary and shall report the same at the next meeting of the Council or the Executive Committee, whichever in the ordinary course would have dealt with the matter.

- (28) Vice President: The Vice President shall be elected from among the members, of the Council or from outside within the jurisdiction of the Association. In the absence of the President, one of the Vice-President shall exercise all powers of the President.
- (29) General Secretary: The General Secretary shall be responsible for carrying out all the decisions of the Executive Committee and of the General Council and shall see that all rules of are observed. He shall carry on correspondence on behalf of the Association and give effect to the resolutions or the Executive Committee and General Council as the Executive Officer. He shall issue notices of meetings and record minutes of the same and is responsible for the maintenance of other records or registers as well as the custody of all papers of the Association and for carrying out other duties that may be entrusted to him by the Hockey Madhya Pradesh from time to time. An imprest of Rs. 50%—may be given to the General Secretary to be recorped from time to time.

Han rary Treasurer: The Hony. Treasurer shall collect and keep with an approved Bank all subscription from affiliated District Associations, Universities and General Meeting. All payments made by him shall be in accordance with the orders of the Association or the Executive Committee.

- (31) All cheques or drafts on the Associations bankers shall be singed jointly by any two out of the President, Hony. Treasurer and the General Secretary. The bank account will be operated by any two of the following office bearers. (a) President (b) General Secretary (c) Hony Treasurer.
- (32) Joint Secretaries shall perform all such duties as may be assigned to him/them by the Hockey Madhya Pradesh and all the duties of the Secretary or the Treasurer in the absence of either of them.

(33) Voting: Every Question at the general or other meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes. In the case of an equality of votes, the Chairman shall have a casting vote in addition to the one they may normally have if he happens to be representative of an affiliated unit.

HOCKEY MADNYA BY ADESH

HOCKEY MAT

President / January / Free burn

President / General Secretary / Treasurer

Ordinarily the General Secretary or in his absence one of the Joint secretaries 11 09 2019 (34) nominated by the President or in his absence by one of the Vice President shall represent the Hockey Madhya Pradesh on various bodies. In case more than one representative is required the president's or in his absence one the Vice President's nomince will represent along with the General Secretary.

Notwithstanding what is contained in the aforesaid paragraph the President if he deems fit shall represent the Association himself or nominate any other office bearer or the member of the Executive Committee to represent the Association.

- All clubs affiliated to the Association directly or indirectly will forward through (35)the affiliated bodies a list of their players including changes to the General Secretary, Hockey Madhya Pradesh, by 30<sup>th</sup> October every year. Any player other than those registered any duly transferred shall not be eligible to play for any club
- All funds of the Association shall be under the control of the Executive (36)Committee who shall be empowered to spend such money within the provision made in the sanctioned budget as they may deem proper for carrying out the aims and objects of the Association. The Committee shall not sanction the expenditure or any amount exceeding Rs. 5000/- on any individual item without the previous ion of the General Council, provided that the expenditure is not catered for in

appeals against the orders of the Executive Committee shall lie with the eneral Council. The appeal should be filed with in one month from date of receipt or orders of the Executive Committee. The Council shall have powers to vary rescind or confirm such decisions and to pass such orders as they think fit.

- The name of the Association, Bodies, Universities players or person debarred (38)form participation in tournament or excluded from membership or suspended shall be circulated to all affiliated organisation for information whenever any such (39)
- All teams wishing to compete in tournaments outside the jurisdiction of the Association shall apply for permission to the General Secretary of the Association
- These articles of the Association may be replaced altered, added to or amended by (40)a resolution at any Annual or Extra ordinary General Meeting provided that no such resolution shall be deemed to have been passed unless it is carried by a majority or at least 2/3 of the members present and entitled to vote at the meeting which number should not be less than 1/2 of the total membership entitled to vote. HOCKEY MADAYARADESH

President / General Secretary / Treasurer

President / General Secretary / Treasurer